英语口语精华
What college are you attending?
2. What are you majoring in? /What''s your major?
3. What grade /class〖年级和班级〗are you in?
4. What school did you go to? /Where do you go to school?
5. How many courses are you taking this semester?
6. I''d better hit the books〖勤奋地钻研或学习〗.
7. Many students are working at part time jobs.
8. I''m a graduate〖毕业生〗of Harvard University.
9. I''ve got six months to go until the graduation.
10. He worked his way through college〖半工半读〗. 
11. He''s busy preparing for class〖忙着准备功课〗.
12. I don''t think I have a mathematical brain〖数学头脑〗.
13. This has been a hard course〖这门功课很难〗for me.
14. I''ve been studying all day, and I''m sick and tired of it〖厌倦〗.
15. He seems to be getting on very well at school. (他在学校似乎念得很好。)
16. Speaking of school, how are your grades this term?
17. The costs of college get higher every year.
18. She''s an easy-going〖随和的〗teacher.
19. The course I took was above me〖超过我的能力〗.
20. As far as English is concerned, he is second to none. (就英语来说，没有人能够比得上他。)
21. He is burning the midnight oil〖开夜车；挑灯夜读〗.
22. How did the test turn out? (考试结果怎样？)
23. I hope I''ll go down in history as a famous English professor. (我希望成为未来历史上有名的英文教授。)
24. There''s nothing wrong with hard work. (刻苦没有错。)
25. Examinations are at hand. (考试在即。)
26. She is at the top of her class. (她名列前茅。)
27. How did you get on in your exam? (你考得怎样？)
28. He is a college dropout. (他从大学辍学半途而废。)
29. He took French leave. (他不辞而别。)
30. She was kicked out of〖开除；退学〗the university.
31. Se won the first place in a speech contest. (第一名)
32. I''m taking 19 credit hours. (我修十九个学分。)
33. I don''t/ wasn''t to cut class〖旷课；逃学〗.
34. Have you ever-studied French? (你学过法文吗？)
35. What''s the book about? (这本书写什么？)
36. She is giving me piano lessons in exchange for her English classes.
37. Where did you go to high school?
上英文课时最有用的句子:
38. What do you call this in English? (怎么称呼这个？)
39. How do you pronounce this word? (怎么念？)
40. How do you spell it? (如何拼写？)
41. How do you say that in English? (用英文怎么说？)
42. What''s the meaning of NATO? /What does NATO mean? /What does NATO stand for? (NATO代表什么？)
43. How does "live" differ from "leave"? (有什么不同？)
44. What''s the difference between A and B?
45. I can''t express myself very well in English.
46. How well do I speak English? (我英文说得怎么样？) 
B

You are a dreamboat. 你是位（异性所追求的）理想人选 
You are such a dish. 你是个绝色美人 
I''ve been dying to meet you. 我非常非常想见到你 
Every time I see you, you leave me out in the cold. 每次我见到你，你都不睬我 
I only have eyes for you . 我只在意你 
I''d do anything to see you crack a smile. 为了博得你的一笑，我情愿做任何事 
You swept me off my feet. 你使我神魂颠倒 
You don''t have a care in the world. 你不知人间烦恼为何物 
I''m still trying to get to second base with you. 我仍旧试着想和你发展到‘第二阶段’（在美国，first base 指拉手，接吻，second base 指抚摩等，third base 指做爱） 
If you don''t want to lose me, you''d better lay it on the line. 如果你不想失去我，就最好一五一十地告诉我吧 
Tell me your story, I''m all ears. 告诉我你的故事，我洗耳恭听 
Someday, when your ship come in, you''ll build your dream house. 总有一天，当你有钱时，你会建造你梦想的家 
I hope your idea takes wing. 我希望你的想法成真 
I wish that you would put your cards on the table. 我希望你干脆把话挑明 
Have you ever seen your old flame? 你还见过你的旧情人吗 
If the shoe fits, wear it. 如果是真的就承认吧 
This experience will make me show my true color. 这种经历将使我暴露我的本性 
I have a bottomed-down mind. 我是个没有什么独到见解的人 
I have no direction, I just get wherever the wind blows. 我没有方向，只是随风到处飘 
I can''t burn the candle at both ends forever. 我不能永远这么过分地消耗精力 
We could make beautiful music together. 我们也许会是和谐幸福的一对儿 
You are always trying to get my goat. 你总是想惹我发火 
I''m a man of my word. 我是个讲信用的人 
Someday you''re going to have to face the music for your actions. 总有一天，你将不得不承担自己的行为所带来的后果 
Just cool your heels! 好了，安静会儿吧 
Save your breath! I don''t want to hear it. 不要说了，我不想听 
Really?? You are so bad! 真的吗？你真棒！！ 
容易弄错的美语


下面一些用语或口语，在字眼上，颇有相似之处，但在意义和用法上，却有不同。使用时要特别小心，以免出错。 
son of a gun 与 son of a bitch：
son of a gun 是对好友表示一种惊讶的口语（an interjection or an exclamation of surprise between very good friends），有点像「坏蛋」、「家伙」的味道。
但 son of a bitch（或 SOB）是美国人极为严重的骂人话（curse word），千万不可乱用，以免闹事。因为这不但意味这位 son 没有确定的父亲，同时母亲也是缺乏道德和贞操（less virtuous）。 例如：
* I have not seen you for a long time；you （are）son of a gun！（你这坏蛋啊，我好久不见你了！） 
* After the two men called each other“son of a bitch”（SOB）,they started a fight.（这两位男子互骂SOB後，就动起武来。）
至於 son of a gun 的来由，据说从前女人可以住在海军船上服务。结果一位女人生下孩子时，不知父亲是谁，於是船上的人，就以「gun」做为孩子的 paternity，孩子也就被称为「son of a gun」。虽然只用在好友中，但有时也真有坏蛋的意思（evil person or a rogue）所以不是恭维语（complimentary word），除非真正好友，少用为妙。 
at large 与 by and large：
at large 当形容词，最常用的意思是指嫌犯脱逃，逍遥法外（escape,referring to criminal before arrest）而 by and large 当副词用，意思是一般而言（generally speaking on the whole）。 例如：
* The murder suspect is still at large. （凶手仍然逍遥法外）
* By and large, I feel（that）the new proposal is sensible.（大体来说，我认为新的建议是很切合实际的。）
* By and large, most people will care about their weight. （一般而言，许多人关心他们的体重）
然而，有时 at large 也有「一般」（in general）的意思。 例如：
* The Chinese people at large are peace－loving. （一般中国人是爱好和平的） 
Here you go 与 Here you go again：
Here you go 是指给别人东西时说：「这就是你要的」（=Here is what you want）；有时也表示同意对方的意见（= you are right）；有时又与 there you go 互用。
* The cashier said, “Here you go！”when she gave me the change. （当收款员找我零钱时，她说：「这就是！」）
但是 Here you（或 we）go again 意思是「你又旧事重提了」，表示对一件事情多次重复的厌烦。（feel annoyed when something is repeated over and over again）。例如：
* When he brought up the same issue to me, I said, “Here you go again！”（当他向我提出同样的问题时，我说：「又是老话题了！」）
至於“Here goes”又是指说话者开始做某事时说：「开始了」。例如：
*“Here goes！”, shouted the racer as he started running.（当赛跑者开始跑步时，喊著「我就开始了！」） 
to marry （someone）与 to be married to（someone）： marry 当做及物动词时，多用主动语态（active voice）。 例如：
* She married a man ten years younger（或older）. （她嫁给一位比她小或大十岁的男人）
= She married a man ten years her junior（或senior）. 
但是 marry 用在被动语态时（passive voice），後面要用介系词 to。 例如：
* She is（was）married to a man ten years younger（older）.
= She is （was）married to a man ten years her junior（senior).（假如用 is，指目前还是夫妻，如用 was，可能已经不是夫妻了）
然而，在 married 後面用介系词 by 时，又有「牧师证婚」的意思。 例如：
* She was married by a man ten years younger. (是指为她证婚的牧师，比她小十岁。)
* She was married by my father.（为他证婚的牧师是我老爸。）(因为牧师证婚已成过去，所以要用过去式 was。） 
near 与 near by： 
near 是介系词（preposition）通常後面跟受词（object），但是 near by（或 nearby）当形容词（adjective）意思是指「附近」（=close)，只指某一地方（somewhere），没有特定地点（no specific location）。 例如：
* The school is near the railway station. （学校在火车站附近。）
* The post office and library are near by. （邮局和图书馆都在附近。）
可见 near by（或 nearby）通常後面不加受词，不然就显得 awkward 了。所以很少人说：
* I ate at a near restaurant. 不过可以说：
* I ate at a nearby restaurant.; 或
* The restaurant where I ate is nearby.（不过也有老外用 near） 
school is open 与 the school is open： 
school is open (或 schools are open) 是指「学校开学」(classes are in session)，这里的 open 是形容词，school 前面不加冠词 the，意味整个中小学的 school system。但是 the school is open，多指学校的建筑物开放著，但没有学生上课。
同理：He goes to school. 是指他去上学读书受教育，而 He goes to the school. 又指他去学校的建筑物（看朋友、参观等）。 
至於 School is closed.（或 Schools are closed.) 是指「学校停课」，前面也不加 the。
注意：close 当形容词时，也有「附近」(nearby) 或「友善」(friendly) 的意思。 例如：
* The school is close（=nearby).（学校在附近。）
* That is a close neighborhood.（那是一个友善的住宅区），而 The school is opened at 8 a.m.; 或
* The school is closed at 5 p.m.（都是指学校的建筑物开放或关闭的时间。）
但是 The store is open. 是指店铺在营业中（= Business is going on.），而 The store is closed. 又是指店铺暂时不营业。
假如店铺是永久性的「关门大吉」，就应该说：
* The store was closed down. (permanently)
不过 closed 当形容词时，又有「保守」（conservative）或受某种「限制」（restricted）的意思。 例如：
* This is a closed community.（这是一个保守的社区。）（由於宗教信仰等原因，美国有的社区不欢迎外来的人。） 
美国人的口头禅
9. It is a shame!
这是一句可以用在许多适当情况的口语 (Catch-all phrase)，是表示一种轻度的「遗憾」或「同情」(a form of sympathy or regret) 但没有「羞耻」的意思。例如：
It is a shame that your car got stuck in the snow.（你的汽车陷在雪里，真糟糕。） 
When I said, "I lost ten dollars from my pocket.",he replied, "It is a shame!"（当我说：「我从口袋里掉了十块钱」，他回答：「真遗憾？」)
至於 "What a shame"，其实与 "it is a shame" 意思相似，也有 "It is too bad" 的味道。例如： 
What a shame that his son''s behavior is so rude.（他儿子的粗鲁行为是令人遗憾的） 
10. May it ever be thus!
意思是:希望保持现在的情况，不会改变。(I hope it will not change; may the situation always remain the same.)，通常用在喜庆时，也有祝你与现在一样的健康快乐之意。(I hope you are always as healthy and happy as now.) 例如：
We are wonderful friends; may it ever be thus!（我们是好友，愿永远如此！） 
He said to the newly weds, "May it ever be thus!"（他对新婚夫妇说：「愿你们永远这样的恩爱、幸福」） 
11. Am I being petty?
意思是：「我是气量小吗？」或「我是心胸狭窄吗？」(narrow-minded) 这是一个人做了或说了某件事情後，唯恐别人批评或指责而自加「反省」的表态。（或表示谦虚）
这里用 verb to be 的现在进行式，表示气量小或心胸窄是「暂时性」的。而 Am I petty? 又是指「经常性」的。（但是谁又愿意承认自己是经常的气量小，心胸窄呢！所以为了「自尊心」，通常不说"I am petty"，只说"I am being petty." 同理：
Am I being over-reactive?（或 over sensitive?)（我是反应过火或过份敏感吗？） 
Are you being in bad mood?（你情绪不好吗？）都是强调「暂时性」。否则就不必使用现在进行式 (being)
（主词可用任何人称代名词 you, we, he, she, they 等，动词可用任何时态。） 
12. Stay tuned!
这多半是指播音员在收音机或电视上所说的。意思是：「稍等一下，下面还有」(Stay where you are in the same channel)，但也可以表示对一件事情的继续讨论 (to keep continuing the same issue)。（tuned是形容词，原意是调好电台或电视）例如：
Stay tuned, there will be more on this subject tomorrow.（稍等，这个问题明天再谈。） 
Stay tuned 的等候时间，可长可短，要看情况而定。
然而 "wait a moment" 通常是指 immediately，时间较短。例如： 
Stay tuned（或 wait a moment）I will be right back.（指马上回来）
但是： 
We have to stay tuned regarding the name change of our school.（我们必须等待校名的变更）（等待时间较长） 
13. You can say that again！
这句话的意思是「我同意你」（I agree with you.）或「你对了」（You are right.）例如：
When the professor spoke on human rights, the students responded, "You can say that again！"（当教授谈到人权时；学生回答说：「你说得对！」）
虽然这句话的主词通常只用第二人称单数 You，但在某些情况下，也可以用其他人称。例如： 
When we heard Mr. Clinton''s speech on tax reduction, my wife turned to me and said, "He can say that again！"（当我们听到柯林顿先生减税的讲演时，内人转头对我说：「他说得对！」） 
14. Let me sleep on it.
意思是「让我考虑一下」或「让我想想看」（let me think about it.）（这与 sleep 没有关系）例如：
Let me sleep on your proposal.（让我考虑你的建议。） 
When he asked if she wanted to stay with him, she said, "Let me sleep on it."（当他问她要不要留下来，她说：「要想想看」。）
在 "let me sleep on it." 中，me 可用其他人称代名词（him, her, you, us, them 等），it 有时也用 this 或 that 代替。 
15. Take heart！
意思是「勇敢些」、「不必苦恼」、「振作起来」（be brave; don''t worry; don''t let things get you down）（多半指感情方面，比较 emotional）例如：
Take heart, and the situation will be better.（不必怕，情况会好些。） 
Take heart, I am sure you will be successful in the future.（振作起来吧，我相信你将来会成功的。） 
16. Tune him out!
意思是「别听他的」，「不必理会他」（don''t listen to him; don''t pay attention to him.）例如：
Mr. Lee just talked nonsense; tune him out.（李先生在瞎扯，别听他的。） 
I am going to tune her out when she begins to speak on the subject.（当她谈及主题时，我不想理会她。） 
The husband tuned out his wife when he was watching the football game.（老公看足球赛时没有理会太座。）
（tune out 有时也可连在一起使用）（在 "tune him out" 这句口语里，动词 tune 可用任何时态；受词 him 也可用其他人称代名词。） 

美式惯用语 
Eg. I''ll back you up all the way.我完全支持你。
原句： I will support you from beginning to end.
Eg. Why don''t you get off my back?
不要来打扰我，好不好？
原句：Don''t disturb me.
Eg. That''s enough of your back talk.
不许你回嘴。
原句： I don''t like the way you argue with me.
Eg. Oh, my aching back
啊呀，天啊，真糟！
原句： Oh， God!
Eg. I must say this about Lee， he''s really on the ball.
他做人醒目勤奋。
原句： He''s really working hard.
Eg. I''m beat.
我累死了。
原句： I''m in exhausted.
Eg. Why should I beat my brains out for the salary I''m getting?
我拿这么一点薪水，犯不着伤脑筋。
原句： I''m only getting a small salary, so I don''t need to work too hard.
Eg. Row，beat it!
走开点。
原句： Get away。
Eg. Where did you get the beat-up old car?
你从哪儿弄来那辆老爷车？
原句： Where did you buy the broken-down car？
Eg. Keep your big mouth shut.
住嘴。
原句： Stop talking.
Eg. He is a big-time operator.
他这人很吃得开。
原句：He has Rood connections.
Eg. Give me a break.
给我一个机会啦。
原句：Give me a chance.
Eg. Don''t brush me off.
不要敷衍我。
原句：Don''t stall me.
Eg. I don''t buy your story.
我不相信你。
原句：I don''t believe you.
Eg. Let''s call it quits.
算了吧！
原句： Let''s forget it.
Eg. His words carry a lot of weight.
他的话很有力量。
原句： He is very influential.
Eg. He is trying to cash in on me.
他想占我便宜。
原句： He is trying to take advantage from me.
Eg. It''s a lot of chicken feed.
这是小意思，不算什么。
原句： It''s nothing.
Eg. Don''t chicken out. Be a man.
不要退缩了。
原句：Don''t back out.
Eg. It''s my cup of tea.
这很合我胃口。
原句：It''s my favorite.
Eg. "What''s my cut?"
我有什么好处？
原句：what''s my share?
Eg. Cut it out.
不要这个样子啦！
原句: Don''t be like that.
Eg. That will be the day.
有这么一天就好了。
原句：It''s not possible.
Eg. He double-crossed me.
他出卖了我。
原句： He betrayed me.
Eg. He''s down and out.
他已经完了。
原句：He is finished.
Eg. Drop dead.
走开点。
原句：Go away.
Eg. Take it easy.
不要这么紧张。
原句： Relax.
What''s eating you?
你有什么烦恼？
原句：what''s bothering you?
Keep an eye on him.
看住他。
原句：Watch him.
He is a fast talker.
他老是说得天花乱坠。
原句：He is always bragging.
I am fed up.
我已经厌倦了。
原句： I am sick and tired.
Please fill me in.
请你把情形告诉我。
原句： Please tell me all about it.
It''s full of hot air.
这是雷声大雨点小。
原句：Lots of talk and no action.
What''s the gag?
这里面有什么奥妙？
原句：What''s the trick?
He told me to get lost.
他叫我走开。
原句：he told me go away.
That''s a good gimmick.
那是一个好办法。
原句：That''s good thinking.
He gave me a pain in the neck.
他真叫我头痛。
原句：He gave me trouble.
He''s always on the go.
他永远是前进的。
原句： He''s always going ahead.
I''ll have another go at it.
我再试一次。
原句： I''ll try again.
I''ll go along with you.
我同意你。
原句： I''ll agree with you.
It''s a good deal.
这是一个好买卖。
原句：It''s a good bargain.
He always goofs off.
他总是糊里糊涂。
原句： He always slips.
Go on.
不要这个样子啦！
原句：Don''t be like that.
It''s all Greek to me.
我全不懂。
原句：I don''t understand.
I''ve had it.
糟了（吃饱了）。
原句：I''ve had enough.
I''m hard up.
我经济很困难。
原句：I don''t have money.
He''s having a hard time.
他的处境不好。
原句：He''s in trouble.
Do to hell!
滚蛋！
原句： Go away.
It''s a hit.
这件事很受人欢迎。
原句：It''s very popular.
He''s in hot water.
他在水深火热中。
原句： He is in deep trouble.
So， you finally broke the ice.
你终于打破了僵局。
原句：So，you finally broke through.
What''s in it for me?
我有什么好处？
原句： What''s my share?
He is in a jam.
他可糟了。
原句： He is in great trouble.
Don''t jump on me.
不要跟我发火。
原句： Don''t be angry at me.
It''s a lot of junks.
这都是一些鬼东西。
原句： It''s a lot of garbage.
I got a big kick out of it.
这件事真令我开心。
原句： It makes me laugh.
What the kick back for me?
我有回扣拿吗？
原句： What''s my cut under the table?
He kicked the bucket.
他已经归天。
原句： He died.
Are you kidding?
你是不是开玩笑？
原句： Are you joking?
Oh! you are killing me!
笑死人了。
原句：It''s really funny.
Knock it off.
不要这个样子。
原句：Don''t be like that.
Stop pulling my leg.
不要开我玩笑了。
原句：Don''t make fun of me.
You are out of line.
你太过份了。
原句： You are over doing it.
Please bring me up to date.
把最近的情形告诉我。
原句： Please give me the latest information.
I will make it up to you.
我一定会补偿你的。
原句： I''ll compensate you.
You made it again. (You did it again.)
你又得手了。
原句： You succeed again.
You hit the nail on the head.
你真是一言中的。
原句： You are absolutely right.
No dice.
不行。
原句：No way.
He is a nut.
他有点精神病。
原句： He is insane.
Nuts!
胡说！
原句：Nonsense!
It''s on the house.
这是免费的。
原句： It''s free.
He is an operator. (here it means a thief，a swindler，ect.)
他是一个老滑头。
原句：He is a swindler.
Don''t panic.
不要慌啊！
原句：Don''t be nervous.
He passed out.
他已经昏倒了！
原句: He fainted.
To me it is just peanuts.
对我来讲，这太不值得了。
原句： It''s nothing to me.
He is a phoney.
他是一个骗子。
原句： He is fake.
Pick me up at seven tonight.
今天晚上七点钟你来接我。
原句：Come and get me at seven tonight.
He was put on the spot.
他已经给人打死了。
原句：He was killed.
He puts up a good show.
他的表现很好。
原句：He behaves himself well.
I can''t put up with you any longer.
我不能再忍耐了。
原句： I can''t stand you any longer.
Let''s call it quits.
我们算了吧！
原句： Let''s forget the whole thing.
He was taken for a ride.
他受骗了。
原句：He was fooled.
Let it ride.
让他去吧！
原句： Keep it as it is.
I''m running this shop.
我管理这个铺子。
原句：I''m the owner of the shop.
Time is running out.
时间不多了。
原句： There is not much time.
He got the sack.
他被开除了。
原句：He was fired.
Says who?
谁说的？我不同意。
原句：I don''t agree.
Let''s have a show down with John.
我们跟约翰摊牌。
原句：Let''s tell Tom the truth.
What''s up your sleeves?
你变的是什么戏法？
原句： What do you have in mind?
I am only a small potato.
我只是一个小角色。
原句： I''m nobody．
John Lee is a some-body， although be was a nobody two years ago.
李约翰现在已是名人，虽然两年前是默默无闻的.
原句： John Lee is a very important man， although he was a
nobody two years ago.
He is now in the soup.
他现在糟糕了。
原句： He is now in great trouble.
Keep stalling him.
继续拖延他吧。
原句： Keep brushing him off.
Jack was all steamed up.
杰克非常冲动。
原句： Jack was furious.
I''m having a swell time.
我玩得很开心 。
原句：I''m having a wonderful time.
I was taken in.
我受骗了。
原句： I was cheated.
Tell it to the marines.
我不会相信的。
原句：I don''t believe.
That''s it.
不错，就是这样。
原句：That''s the whole story.
There you go again.
啊呀！你又来了！
原句：No， not again.
What''s up?
有什么好新闻？
原句： What''s going on?
What are you up to?
你又搞什么鬼？
原句： What do you intend to do now？
I''m on the wagon.
我戒酒了。
原句： I quit drinking.
Walls have ears.
隔墙有耳。
原句： Keep your voice down.
Still water runs deep.
大智若愚。
原句：A wise man playing a fool.
What do you say?
你的意思怎么样？
原句： What do you think?
So what?
那又怎么样？
原句： What can you do about it?
What''s up?
有什么事情吗？
原句： Anything happen? 
当别人在你旁边罗嗦个没完，你烦透了，说“You are so boring “.(你真烦！)。“Shut up !”（闭嘴！）自然没错，可人家受得了吗？不如来一句“Oh, come on .Give me a break !” (帮帮忙，让我歇歇吧！)这多地道、多幽默。

要想说人“气色好”。“You look fine !”当然不错，可如果你说”You’re in the pink !”就妙得多了，实际上，在英语口语中，表示颜色的词用起来非常形象生动。
“他精力充沛”美国人说：“He is bouncy.”而不说“He is energetic ”,牢记一些日常对话中的活句式是你一把必备的钥匙。
如：久仰，“I get mind of you “.比”I heard a lot about you.”轻松得多。

代问他人好当然能用”Please remember me to your sister .” 或”Please give my best wishes to your father ”不过，若是很好的朋友，何不说，“Please give my love to Jim。”

在中国可不能随便说“我想你”，然而，当和西方人分手时说“I will miss you .”要比说“Good-bye”或“See you soon”有趣得多，不妨一试。

有人开会迟到了，你若对他说 “You are late .”，听起来象是废话，若说“Did you get lost ?”，则更能让他歉然，可别说成“Get lost!”那可是让人滚蛋的意思。

别人征求你的意见，问能否开窗户等，你要说“You can do that .”就有点土了，用一句“Do you have the time? ”实际上，问他人的姓名，地址都可以这么用：“May I have you name?“要比”What’s your name ? ”礼貌得多，不过警察例外。

别人问你不愿公开的问题，切勿用“It’s my secret ,Don’t ask such a personal question .”回答，一来显得你没有个性，二来也让对方尴尬。你可以说“I would rather not say .”（还是别说了吧！）。

有时候，你想说什么，可说是想不起来，你可以说“Well …”“Let me see”“Just a moment ”或“It’s on the tip of my tongue.”等，想比之下，最后一个句型是最地道的。

交谈时，你可能会转换话题，不要只说“By the way ”,实际上，“To change the subject”“Before I forget”“While I remember”“Mind you ”都是既地道有受欢迎的表达。

遇到你不懂的问题时可别不懂装懂，“I know”可能是中国人用得最多，而美国人最不能接受的一句话。当一美国教师向你解释某个问题时，你如果连说两遍“I know”可能是中国人用得最多，而美国人最不能接受的一句话。当一美国教师向你解释某个问题时，你如果连说两遍“I know”,我敢保证，他不会再跟你说什么了。用“I know ”或“I got it ”就顺耳得多，要是不懂就说“I’m not clear about it .”不过如果你会说“It’s past my understanding”或“It’s beyond me .”你的教师定会惊讶不已的。
要想将地道习语熟练地运用于口语，下面内容，不可不读：

☆ a black sheep 败家子
绵羊一般为白色，一旦成了黑色的绵羊，一定是个“败类”。
Eric is a black sheep ,splashing one million dollars in a few years .
艾瑞克是个败家子，几年就挥霍了一百万美金。
☆ A rough diamond 内秀外粗的人
Rough diamond 指“没加工的钻石”，用来指内秀外粗的人，真是妙语！
{脱口说}
The guy is really a rough diamond , and he can get everything right ,although he is a little bit careless .
这家伙真的是个外粗内秀的人，他什么都能搞定，虽然他有点大大咧咧的。
☆ Be level-headed (calm and relaxed) 头脑冷静的人
可别以为 level-headed 是“小平头”，“平头”的英语说法是“crew cut”,他留了个平头——He wears his hair in a crew cut .
{脱口说}
My boss ,John Smith ,is the most level –headed man I’ve ever known .
我的老板约翰.史密斯是我见过的头脑最冷静的人。
☆ A greaseball (greasy guy ) 油腔滑调的人，“老油条”
Grease 油脂的意思，greaseball 的意思是涂满油脂的球，专指那些油腔滑调的人，这类人近似于我们常说的“嘴太贫”的人。
{脱口说}
Mary’s boyfriend is such a greaseball , I don’t know why she is so crazy about him .
玛丽的男友是个油腔滑调的家伙，我不明白为什么她如此地迷恋他。
☆ Weigh on one’s mind 心事重重
{脱口说}
Do you know what has happened to her recently? She seems to have something that weighs heavily on her mind these days 
你知道她最近发生了什么事吗？她看起来心事很重。
☆ Be green-eyed (be jealousy) 嫉妒的“红眼病”
源自莎士比亚名剧《奥赛罗》第3幕第3场中的台词“O! be ware , my lord ,of jealousy;/It’s the green-eyed monster… …“
中国人嫉妒时，是“红眼病”，英美国家的人则“绿了眼”，有意思。在美国，有时直接用green表示嫉妒。
When I got the well-paid job in a foreign company , my friends were somewhat green with envy .
当我在一家外企找了份收入丰厚的工作时，我的朋友都有点嫉妒我。
☆ Your doggy looks quite lovely , doesn’t he ?
（你的狗宝宝看上去真可爱！）

☆ Excuse me ,but your blue coat is pretty beautiful ,Where did you buy it ?
(打扰你了。你的蓝上衣真是漂亮，哪儿买的？)
在同外国人士交往过程中，你要注意别人的外表是否有了大的变化或添了新的装饰，如新发型、新衣服、首饰等。然后加以适当的赞美,但无须过分,否则就有虚情假意之嫌.即便是对方外观没有大的改观，但比平时略显精神，你也可以说，

☆ “Ben, you look very good today.”或Ben ,you’re looking energetic these days .”
(本，你近来显得活力十足。)

在美国，对别人新添置的物品都要习惯地加以赞美，如

☆ “Hey, I’m crazy about your new bicycle.”
(嘿，我真喜欢你的新自行车。) 

☆ “Your new dress has brilliant color!”
(你的新衣服颜色真鲜艳！)

如果被邀请去参观朋友的住宅、办公室或公司，对其加以赞美就是比不可少的了。

☆ “I can’t imagine you have such a splendid house !”
(真不敢相信你竟有这么豪华的房子。)

☆ “How nice your office looks “
（你的办公室看上去不错。）

要知道，没人不爱听这些。
不过在吃饭时，外国人对你菜肴的赞美往往只是礼貌，即使他们吃不惯，他们也会说“The dish is delicious ”可不要拿出中国人的豪爽，没完没了给他夹菜，浪费了不说，还常常弄得对方难堪。
表达赞美时需要注意以下情况：

1、赞美一两句即可，当别人表示感谢之后就可打住，或进入别的话题。

2、若别人向你展示新买的衣服等，即便你对它感觉不如意，也要尽量发现你感兴趣的地方，如颜色、样式等加以赞美。
3、中国人很少当面夸赞别人的妻子长得如何漂亮，而在西方文化中， 对别人妻子的赞美是活跃气氛并且很受欢迎的。不过，赞美之后，你的眼睛久久不能从那女士的脸上挪开，可就另当别论了。
4、赞美别人的首饰或衣服之后不要画蛇添足，
问她一句，“It must be very expensive. How much is it?”（这一定很贵吧。多少钱啊？）
5、无论别人怎样赞美你，你只要一句“Thanks a lot.”就足以达到交流的效果，无须中国式的谦虚，“No, No”，会让赞美你的人莫明其妙，甚至认为你怀疑他的审美观有问题。
6、美国老师上课时大多慈悲为怀，只要学生开口，无论怎样信口开河或者牛头不对马嘴，老师都会说“Good job!”；“Very nice!”；“Ok, you have a creative answer”；“What an original opinion!”。这既能鼓励学生，又能激发学生参与的积极性。这可是中国老师不妨学学的地方。
7、在英美国家的各种聚会上，女士们常夸赞自己的丈夫有能力，夸赞自己的孩子如何聪明可爱；男士们也常夸赞自己的妻子温柔可人，夸赞自己的老板如何地重用自己，这既能活跃气氛，又能尽显自己人性美的一部分。若有机会你参加外国人的ball（舞会），你也不妨收起你的谦虚，将你的赞美适时适度地表达出来。
break one''s heart 
　　由break 和beart构成的词很多，如：hearbreak(极度伤心); hearbreaking(使心碎的)，heat-broken(极度伤心的) ，大家可能注意到都是和"伤心"有关，break one''s heat 就是指伤透某人的心。
实战运用：
A：You look so sad ! what happened 
B: I broke up with my girl friend yesterday 
A: Did you ? I had the same experience ,It almost broke my heart .
B : But luckily you''re all right now .
brush to one side 
　　brush的意思是"推、拂"从字面上看，该习语的意思是："把… …拂到一边去，"，由此引申为"不屑一顾"
实战运用：
A : Helen''s become so proud since she married that rich man .
B : I once talked with her ,but she brushed all my suggestion to one side .
A : She''ll ask for it .
B: Sure .
butt in
butt 有"冲、撞、冒冒失失地开"的意思。在美国俚语中，butt in 指"干涉、插嘴"。
实战运用：
A: Don''t butt in ,You''re still wet behind the ears You know nothing about our business.
B: Why don''t you let me air my opinions ? I have no say in this house .
A : What do you know about our business ? Your mum and I have been in trouble .
B: That''s why I wanted to know what the trouble is I might be of some help .
by the way
这句话很简单,也很常用：顺便问一下
实战运用：
A：Do you often keep in touch with Jane ?
B: Yeah ,we call each other if we have time .
A: I haven''t seen her for a long time 
B :She changes a lot .
A: I saw her last night ,By the way ,do you know ,she''s married ?
B: Yea ,with Johnson .
A: It''s a little bit surprising ,isn''t it ?
B: Yes ,indeed .
地道美语A
最hot的词汇，最in的句子，最自然的表达，最地道的口语--这就是地道美语栏目想带给您的。每期20个精彩短语，让你出口成章。带着轻松自信的表情，说出掷地有声地道美语吧！
1、 Be on one''s high horse 
趾高气扬 
2、 Fight tooth and nail 
猛烈作战 
3、 Out of sight and out of mind 
眼不见心不烦 
4、 Face the music 
临危不惧 
5、 as busy as a bee 
极忙碌
6、 No pains , no gains 
不劳无获 
7、Black and blue . 
遍体鳞伤 
8、Every dog has his day 人皆有得意时 
9、A green hand 生手 
10、Walls have ears 隔墙有耳 
11、Chewing gum 口香糖 
12、On top of the world 心满意足 
13、A black sheep 害群之马 
14、A piece of cake 轻松的事 
15、Look before you leap 三思而后行 
16、Easier said than done 说起来容易做起来难 
17、Better half 配偶 
18、Be all ears 全神贯注地倾听 
19、Failure is the mother of success 失败乃成功之母 
20、Serve one right 活该 
地道美语B
1、Is that so?真是那样吗？
2、Don''t play games with me!别跟我耍花招！ 
3、don''t know for sure.我不确切知道。 
4、I''m not going to kid you.我不是跟你开玩笑的。 
5、That''s something. 太好了，太棒了 。
6、Brilliant idea! 这主意真棒！
7、Congratulations.恭喜你，祝贺你。 
8、Thanks anyway.无论如何我还是得谢谢你。
9、It''s a deal.一言为定。
10、Mind you!请注意！听着！
11、You can count on it.你尽管相信好了，尽管放心。 
12、I never liked it anyway.我一直不太喜欢这东西。 13、That depends.看情况再说。 
14、Do you really mean it? 此话当真？ 
15、You are a great help.你帮了大忙 。
16、I couldn''t be more sure. 我再也肯定不过。 
17、I am behind you.我支持你。 
18、I''m broke.我身无分文。
19、After you.你先请。
20、I just couldn''t help it.我就是忍不住。
地道美语C
1、Don''t take it to heart. 别往心里去，
2、We''d better be off.我们该走了
3、Let''s face it. 面对现实吧
4、Let''s get started.咱们开始干吧
5、I''m really dead. 我真要累死了
6、I''ve done my best. 我已尽力了
7、I couldn''t care less.我不在乎
8、I couldn''t agree more我完全同意
9、I couldn''t please you more 我尽量使你高兴
10、No bones about it. 真实的，诚恳的
11、take it on me！这是我的，请用吧
12、 You never know. 天晓得
13、 You may say that again.我同意
14、If you insist.恭敬不如从命 
15、You can count on me.
16、I wish I could.我不行
17、I mean it.我是认真的
18、I am not kidding.
19、That''s really sth. 真了不起
20、I''ll be back.我会回来的
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　 
钻石句型 

　　1、When reports came into London zoo that a wild puma had been spotted forty-five miles south of London，they were not taken seriously.
据伦敦消息报道，一只野生的美洲狮在距伦敦南面45英里处被发现，这些报告并没有受到重视。
　　2、It immediately ran away when she saw it, and experts confirmed that a puma will not attack a human being unless it is cornered.
当她看见美洲狮时，美洲狮立刻掉头而逃，椐专家证明，美洲豹除非被逼得走投无路，是决不会伤人的。 　　3、It is disturbing to think that a dangerous wild animal is still at large in the quiet countryside.
想到在宁静的乡村里有一关危险的野兽继续逍遥流窜，真令人担心。
　　4、It must have been in the possession of a private collector.
它一定是属于一位私人收藏家的。
　　5、I want give you a surprise. You certainly did give me a surprise.
我想给你一个惊喜。你确实给了我一个惊喜。
　　6、Some time ago, an interesting discovery was made by archaeologists on the WuHan island of China.
不久之前，在中国的武汉，考古学家们有了一项有趣的发现。
　　7、The city at one time must have been prosperous, for it enjoyed a high level of civilization.
这座古城肯定一度很繁荣，因为它曾享有高度的文明。
　　8、Houses - often three storeys high - were built of stone. They had large rooms with beautifully decorated walls.
这些通常有三层高的房子，用石头修建，里面房间很大，墙壁装饰华丽。
　　9、She stood three feet high and her hands rested on her hips.
她身高3英尺，双手叉腰。
　　10、She was wearing a full-length skirt which swept the ground.
她穿着一件拖地长裙。
　　11、Despite her great age, she was very graceful indeed, but, the archaeologists have been unable to discover her identity.
尽管上了年纪，但体态确实优美，不过，考古工作者至今未能确定这位女神的身份。
　　12、These days, people who do manual work often receive far more money than people who work in offices.
如今，从事体力劳动的人的收入一般要比坐办公室的人高出许多。
　　13、People who work in offices are frequently referred to as "white-collar workers" for the simple reason that they usually wear a collar and tie to go to walk.
坐办公室的人之所以常常被称作"白领工人"，就是因为他们通常是穿着硬领白衬衫，系着领带去上班。
　　14、This can give rise to curious situations.
这能增加好奇心。
　　15、He left home dressed in a smart black suit.
他穿着一身漂亮的黑色套装出了家门。
　　16、His wife has never discovered that she married a dustman and she never will.
他的妻子从未发现自己嫁给了一个她从来不愿意嫁的清洁工。
　　17、He will be earning only half as much as he used to, but, he feels that he rise in status is well worth the loss of money.
他将来挣的钱只有他现在的一半，不过他觉得，地位升高了，损失点儿钱也值得。
　　18、Such is human nature, that man like money women like beauty.
这就是人类的本性--男人爱钱，女人爱美。
　　19、Such is human nature, that man always desire to earn more money.
人总有想挣到更多的钱的欲望，这就是人类的本性。
20、Boyfriend leave , tears stream down me face .
男友离开了，我泪如雨下。
一、Basic Expressions 
　　问候基本用语 
　　1.Good morning [afternoon ,evening ],John . 
　　早安（午安，晚安），约翰。 
　　2.Hi, John. 
　　 嗨，约翰。 
　　3.Hi, Mark .how are you doing? 
　　 嗨，马克。你好吗？ 
　　4.Fine. And you? 
　　 不错。你呢？ 
　　5. Hello，Jane. how are you? 
　　 哈罗，珍。你好吗？ 
　　6. Pretty good. Thanks. And you? 
　　 很不错，谢谢。你呢？ 
　　7. What’s upheld? Nothing much. 
　　 怎么了？没什么。 
　　8. What’s happening? 
　　 近来好吗？ 
　　9.Nothing much .I’m just taking one day at a time. 
　　 没什么。我只是过一天算一天。 
　　10.How are you feeling today? 
　　 你今天觉得怎样？ 
　　11.Just so so. 
　　 普通。 
　　12. How is it going? 
　　 近况如何。 
　　13. How’s everything with you? 
　　 你的一切如何？ 
　　14.Hi! Are you having fun? 
　　 嗨，你过得愉快吗？ 
　　15.How have you been (feeling)? 
　　 你近来如何？ 
　　16. So far so good. 
　　 到目前还好。 
　　（一）Greetings with People Met Often 
　　 问候常见面的人 
　　17.Hi, there! 
　　 嗨，哈罗！ 
　　18.How are you doing? I can’t complain too much. 
　　 你好吗？我不能太抱怨。（还不错）。 
　　19.How is your business going? 
　　 你生意做得怎样？ 
　　20.How are things going? 
　　 事情进行得怎样？ 
　　21.How is your day going? 
　　 过得如何？ 
　　22.How are you doing these days? Well, about the same . 
　　 最近好吗？嗯，差不多一样。 
　　23. What’s new? 
　　 近况如何。 
　　24.How do you feel today? 
　　 你今天觉得怎样？ 
　　25.I feel like a new man. 
　　 我觉得好像脱胎换骨了。 
　　26.Are you making progress? 
　　 你有进展吗？ 
　　27.Have gotten over your cold? 
　　 你感冒好了吗？ 
　　28.Did you sleep soundly last night? 
　　 你昨晚睡得好吗？ 
　　29. What’s the matter? Don’t you feel well? 
　　 怎么了？你不舒服吗？ 
　　30.Why are you so cross today? 
　　 你今天怎么这么容易生气？ 
　　31.You look tired. Had a big night? 
　　 你看起来很疲倦。昨晚刺激吗？ 
　　32.How come you look so tired? 
　　 你怎么看起来这么疲倦？ 
　　33.Why are you in such a good mood? 
　　 你怎么心情这么好？ 
　　34.You look under the weather today. 
　　 你今天好像不舒服。 
　　35.Is anything wrong? 
　　 有什么不对劲吗？ 
　　36.Where are you headed? 
　　 你去哪里？ 
　　37.I’m on my way to the library. 
　　 我要去图书馆。 
　　38.Where have you been? 
　　 你去哪里了？ 
　　39.What did you do last weekend? 
　　 上个周末你做些什么？ 
　　40.I went to a baseball game. 
　　 我去看棒球赛。 
　　41.Where did you go over the weekend? 
　　 你在哪里渡周末？ 
　　42.Did you manage all right? 
　　 你都处理好了吗？ 
　　43.It’s good to see you again. 
　　 再见到你真好。 
　　44.I haven’t seen much of you lately. 
　　 我近来不常见到你。 
　　45.You’re a sight for sore eyes. 
　　 你真是稀客。 
　　46.What brought you here? 
　　 是什么风把你吹来的？ 
　　47.I didn’t expect to see you here. 
　　 我没想到会在这里看见你。 
　　48.We seem to run into each other often lately. 
　　 我们最近好像经常碰面。 
　　49.Our paths have finally crossed. 
　　 我们终于碰面了。 
　　50.I just stopped by to say hello. 
　　 我只是顺道过来打个招呼。 　
（二）Greetings with People Met Less Often 
　　 
　　问候较少见面的人 
　　51.What have you been upheld to lately? 
　　 你最近都在做些什么？ 
　　52.How have you been getting through the dog days? 
　　 你怎么熬过这些大热天？ 
　　53.Where have you been fooling around? 
　　 你最近在哪里鬼混？ 
　　54.Johny! Yours is the last face I would have expected to see here. 
　　 强尼！你是我在这里最没有料想到会看见的人。 
　　55.Jancy meeting you here! 
　　 真想不到在这里见到你！ 
　　56.Hello, Jane! I haven’t seen you for a long time . 
　　 哈罗，珍！好久不见了。 
　　57. It’s a long time since a saw you last. 
　　 好久不见了。 
　　58.I haven’t seen you in years. 
　　 多年不见了。 
　　59.I haven’t seen you for ages. 
　　 好久不见了。 
　　60.Hi, long time no see. 
　　 嗨，好久不见。 
　　61.Hi, tom, I’m glad I bumped into you. 
　　 嗨，汤姆，很高兴碰见你。 
　　62.What a pleasant surprise! I haven’t seen you for a long time. 
　　 真叫人惊喜！我好久没看到你了。 
　　63.You’re just the man I want to see. 
　　 你真是我想见的人。 
　　64.What happened to Bill? 
　　 比尔怎么了？ 
　　65. No news. But I bet he’s O.K.. 
　　 没什么，我敢说他很好。 
　　66.I haven’t heard from him for 10years. 
　　 我已经十年没有他的消息了。 
　　67.How often do you hear from him ? 
　　 你多久有他的消息？ 
　　68.How is he getting along? 
　　 他近况如何？ 
　　69.He’s in the pink. 
　　 他很健康。 
　　70.How was your trip to Hong Kong? 
　　 你到香港玩得怎样？ 
　　71.I hardly know you. 
　　 我几乎不认识你。 
　　72.Your name just doesn’t come to me. 
　　 我就是想不起你的名字。 
　　73.What has kept you so busy? 
　　 是什么让你这么忙？ 
　　74. How’s everybody at your house? 
　　你的家人好吗？ 　
75.I hope your family are all well. 
　　 我希望你的家人都好。 
　　
76.Mr. Park sends his regards. 
　　 巴克先生问候你。 
　　77.It so happens that I met him on the train just yesterday. 
　　 刚巧，我昨天在火车上碰见他。

　　二、First Greetings 
　　初次问候 
　　Basic Expressions 
　　初次问候基本用语 
　　1.How do you do? I’m glad to meet you. 
　　 你好，很高兴认识你。 
　　2.How do you do? Glad to meet you, too. 
　　 你好，我也很高兴认识你。 
　　3.I’m pleased do meet you. 
　　 我很高兴认识你。 
　　4.The pleasure is mine. 
　　 这是我的荣幸。 
　　5.May I introduce myself? 
　　 我可自我介绍吗？ 
　　6.Let me introduce myself. 
　　 让我自我介绍。 
　　7.My name is Ching –ming Wang.I’m a junior at BeiJing University. 
　　 我叫王庆铭，我是北大三年级的学生。 
　　8.I hope we will become good friends. 
　　 我希望我们能成为好朋友。 
　　9.I work for Chinese Petroleum Corporation. 
　　 我在中国石油公司工作。 
　　10. May I have your name, please? 
　　 请问尊姓大名？ 
　　11.How large is your family? 
　　 你家有多少人？ 
　　12. Where are you from? 
　　 你是哪里人？ 
　　13. What’s your nationality? 
　　 你是哪一国人？ 
　　14.Let me introduce my friend, Mr. Yang. 
　　 让我介绍我的朋友，杨先生。 
　　15.Mr. Brown, this is Mr. Lin. 
　　 布朗先生，这是林先生。 
　　16.I think I’ve seen you before. 
　　 我想我以前见过你。 　
 
1.Time to wake up!
该起床了！
2.I''m going to take a shower.
我要洗个澡。
3.What do you want for breakfast?
你早餐要吃什么？
4.Bye,I''m leaving.
再见，我要走了。
5.Hand me the sports section, will you?
把运动版递给我，好吗？ 
6.I''ll have a sandwich for lunch.
我午餐想吃三明治。
7.What channel is the news on?
哪个频道有新闻报道？
8.Does this station play good music?
这个电台播的音乐好吗？
9.Who''s there?
是谁呀？
10.May I take a message?
你有什么留言要我记下来吗？
11.Honey,I''m home.
亲爱的，我回家了。
12.How was school?
学校的情形怎么样？
13.Dinner is ready.
吃晚饭了。
14.Did you set the table?
你把餐桌摆好了没有？
15.Don''t talk with your mouth full.
嘴巴里有东西时不要说话。
16.I''ll do the dishes.
我来洗碗。
17.Will you help me clean them up?
你可以帮我清理吗？
18.What''s your day like tomorrow?
你明天有什么事要做？
19.Where''s the floss?
牙线在哪里？
20.Goodnight!Sleep tight!
晚安！好好地睡觉！
21.Time to turn in.
该睡觉了。
22.I love bedtime stories.
我喜欢听睡前故事。 
23.It''s time for spring Cleaning.
是春季大扫除的时间。
24.The garbage man is here.
收垃圾的人来了。
25.Clean the bathroom.
清理浴室。
26.Can you help me wash the car?
你可以帮我洗车吗？
27.Sort the laundry.
把要洗的衣服分类。
28.Where is the nearest Laundromat?
最近的自助洗衣店在哪里？
29.Hang the shirt on a hanger.
把衬衫挂在衣架上。
30.Put the socks in the top drawer.
把袜子放在衣柜的最上层。
31.I''d like to pick up my dry cleaning.
我要去拿我送干洗的衣服。
32.I''ll hand wash the dress.
我要用手洗这件上装。
33.I need to shop for a pair of shoes.
我要去买一双鞋子。
34.We only carry women''s clothes.
我们只卖女士服装。
35.It''s on sale today.
它今天在打折。
36.I''ll take it.
我买了。
37.I need more cream.
我需要乳液。
38.You look best in bright red lipstick.
你用鲜艳的红色唇膏看起来最好。
39.What perfume are you wearing?
你擦什么香水？
40.I''m looking for a ring.
我在找一个戒指。
41.Look at my new necklace!
看看我的新项链！
42.I love the earrings you are wearing.
我喜欢你戴的耳环。
43.I need a new pair of dress shoes.
我需要一双新的皮鞋。
44.Do you sell boots here?
你们这里卖靴子吗？
45.I''d like to try these on.
我想要试穿。
46.I''ll bring the slippers.
我会带拖鞋来。
47.This is a lovely desk.
这张桌子很好看。
48.I just love shopping here!
我就是喜欢在这里购物！
49.I need a black bag.
我需要一个黑色的皮包。
50.I''m looking for a watch.
我在找手表。
51.I need a hair band.
我需要一个发带。
52.What sort of belt are you looking for?
你在找什么样的皮带？
53.I need a pair of glasses.
我需要一副眼镜。
54.That style is popular.
那个款式很受欢迎。
55.You look better in contacts.
你戴隐形眼镜比较好看。
56.I''m going to buy groceries.
我要去买食品杂货。
57.We need paper towels.
我们需要纸巾。
58.I need four steaks.
我需要四块牛排。
59.I''m going to get some apples.
我要去买一些苹果。
60.Cherries are not in season yet.
还不到樱桃的季节。
61.We have apples and peaches.
我们有苹果和桃子。
62.It''s time to buy a new TV.
是买一部新电视的时候了。 
63.We need a new toaster.
我们需要一个新的烤面包机。
64.I want two end tables.
我要两个床头小桌。
65.I need a haircut.
我需要剪头发。
66.I have a three o''clock appointment.
我约好三点钟。
67.I need a shampoo.
我要洗头发。
68.I need a trim.
我要修剪头发。
69.I need a perm.
我要烫头发。
70.I need a new hairstyle.
我需要一个新发型。
71.I want my hair cut short.
我要剪短发。
72.How much do I owe you?
一共是多少钱？
73.Don''t forget to tip the hairdresser.
别忘了给美师小费。
74.How short do you want to go?
你要剪多短？
75.I need a shave.
我要修胡须。
76.Do you know where the library is?
你知道图书好在哪里吗？
77.It will be on the right.
那就在右边。
78.How long does this flight take?
这班飞机要飞多久？
79.How far is it?
有多远呢？
80.We have plenty of time.
我们有很多时间呢！
81.That''s an aisle seat.
那是靠走道的座位。
82.Can I get you a drink?
你要我帮你倒杯饮料吗？
83.Did you find your suitcase?
你找到你的小提箱了吗？
84.The bus is leaving in five minutes.
再过五分种公共汽车就要开了。 
85.Which bus should I take?
我应该搭哪路车？
86.We''re taking the bus.
我们搭巴士。
87.I took a tour of Europe.
我到欧洲旅游。
88.Book me two tickets.
我要订两张票。
89.All aboard!
旅客请上车。
90.I wish we could get a seat.
我们要是有位子坐就好了。
91.Hail a taxi.
招出租车。
92.Where to?
你要到哪里？
93.How much is the fare to the airport?
到机场的车费是多少？
94.My turn signal isn''t working.
我的方向灯坏了。
95.I need an oil change.
我要换机油。
96.Fill it up.
把油箱加满。 
97.I got a ticket today.
我今天被开了一张罚单。
98.My car needs a tune-up.
我的车需要调整点火。
99.We cruised to Alaska last year.
我们去年搭游轮到阿拉斯加。
100.Do you have a boat?
你有游艇吗？
101.I like pop music from the 70''s.
我喜欢70年代的流行音乐。
102.Are you going to the concert?
你们要去听演唱会吗？
103.What type of movies do you like best?
你最喜欢什么类型的电影？
104.Two adult tickets, please.
我要买两张成人票。
105.Could you please be quiet?
请你安静一点，好吗？
106.I''d like a box of candy.
我要一盒糖果。
107.Could you record the show for me?
你可以帮忙录下这个节目吗？
108.Don''t forget to rewind the tape.
别忘了倒带！
109.The station plays country music.
这个电台播放乡村音乐。
110.I''m throwing a party.
我要办个宴会。
111.I was invited to a party.
我被邀参加一个宴会。
112.How good of you to come!
你真好，肯赏光！
113.What kind of film do you use?
你用什么胶卷？
114.Do you read a lot?
你经常阅读吗？
115.What do you read most?
你最常读的是什么？
116.I''m going to the library.
我要去图书馆。
117.Is this book out in paperback?
这本书出平装本了吗？
118.Who caught the bouquet?
谁接到新娘花了？
119.When are you graduating?
你几时会毕业？
120.I want to pursue a Master''s degree.
我要攻读硕士学位。 
购物简明口语12句>>>
	这是多少钱？ 
How much does this cost? 
我喜欢这个。 
I like this. 
我要买这个。 
I would like to take this one. 
有没有别的颜色？ 
Do you have any other colors? 
我可以试穿这个吗？ 
May I try this on? 
你可以算便宜一点吗？ 
Can you cut me a deal? 
我可不可以用信用卡付帐？ 
Can I pay by credit card? 
在哪里可以换钱？ 
Where can I change money? 
你们几点营业/打烊？ 
What time do you open/close? 
我要买这个礼物送给我朋友。 
I''m looking for a gift for my friend. 
请帮我把这个包起来。 
Please wrap this for me. 
谢谢，可是我只是看看。 
Think you but I''m just looking. 


20个最地道的英语句型>>>
	1. Hello Friend! 
Hey, man, good to see you. 嗨，幸会。
Good to see you too, I think. 幸会……，大概。
Good afternoon, sir. 下午好，先生。
At ease. 休息。
Good evening, how are you? 晚安，你好吗？
Hello, Randy. Is he going to be taken care of? 喂，蓝迪，你肯把那家伙收拾掉吗？
Sure thing, boss. All in a day''s work. 当然，头，这是家常便饭。
Hi, Joe! 嗨，乔！
Hello, Tom, what''s happening? 你好，汤姆，怎么啦？
Morning, Alice. 早上好，爱丽斯！
Bye! Have a good day. 再见！请慢走！ 
Bye! 再见啦！
Good morning, dear. 早，亲爱的。 
2. This Happy Feeling (1) 
Internet is number one! 国际互联网真是顶呱呱！
We finally made it. 我们终于做到了！
Well done! Bond, you''ve done it! 好极了！邦德，干得好！
Yay, a hole in one! 嘿！一杆进洞！（一击必杀？）
Oh well, better luck next time. 算了，下次的运气会更好。
Steady wins the race. 从容就是赢得比赛的诀窍。
Chase the nice bone, doggie. 狗兄，去追那可口的骨头啊。（俚语，不用解释了吧？）
Tell me, is it a boy? 喂，你是男孩吗？
Come on, honey. 过来，亲爱的。
He swept her off her feet. （俗语）他对她可着迷了。
Beautiful! 漂亮！（和美丽可没关系呦。）
Hey, guy, we''re rich. 嘿，伙计，我们发财了！ 
3. This Happy Feeling (2) 
What skill! What luck! What fun! 多有本事！多么走运！多令人兴奋！
You sucker! 江湖郎中！
You want me to shut him up, guy? 哥们，要不要我把它办掉？
Best wishes to you both. 祝你们俩无比幸福！
Hurray! 万岁！
I always get my man. 我是不会让他从我的眼皮底下溜走的。（意译）
How did you do it? 你是怎样达成它的？ 
Congratulation! 恭喜！
Bottoms up! 干杯！
We did it. 干的好！
Thanks guys, you won the games for us. 谢谢大家，能赢得比赛，委实是托大家的福。
I owe it all to you. 全是托您的福。
Good work. 做得很棒！
Envy. 羡慕。
It''s your fault. 全让你给搞砸了。
No, man. You''re the one who blew it. 不，老兄，你才是败事的一个。 
4. I''m So Mad at... (1) 
What''s goes on here? 什么事？（不情愿的语气）
What are you doing talking to my girl friend? 你小子跟我的女人搭讪，居心何在呀？
Uh-oh, here comes my boy friend, he''s insanely jealous. 噢，我男朋友过来啦，他可是个大醋坛子呦。
Out, rat! 滚出去，老鼠！
Hey, you break it up! 喂，住手啦！
How! A fight! 哗，打架啦！
Ouch! That hurts. 好痛呦！会受伤哩！
Billy, get off the doggie''s tail. 比利，得扰人处且饶人，放他一马吧。
Paint the porch, fool, or else. 傻瓜，快去漱漱口，不然哪（把你的牙全拔了）。
Cut it out, my name is Fred, not Fool! 你给我住嘴，我的名字是Fred，不是傻瓜！ 
Love makes the world go round. 爱能感动世界。 

5. I''m so mad at... (2) 
Here, have some coffee on me. 来，我请你喝咖啡。
I''ll have some on you all right. 好吧，我要挂你的帐喝它个痛快。（多没人性呀！）
Our leader is more devious than your leader. 我们头儿比你们的要棋高一筹。
B.S. our leader invented the word? “胡说八道”这个词是咱们领导创造的吧？
The pen is mightier than the sword. 笔利于剑。
Cad! Cur! Beast! 无赖！流氓！杂种！（可不要到处对人乱讲哟）
Omph! 唔！
Ahh! 啊哈！
Gee, don''t be mad, dear, red looks good on you. 喏，亲爱的，别生气呀。红颜色对于你再合适不过了。
Look what you did, squirt! 小子，你仔细看看你做的好事！
Cool it man，I''m sorry. 对不起，请您息怒。
Auck, don''t hit me! I''m an innocent bystander. 啊呦，别整我，我只是个旁观者。
Snort! I didn''t do anything wrong! 哼哼，我没做错什么事啊。
Out! 滚出去！
I''m sorry, sir. I didn''t mean it. 对不起，老兄，我并没有恶意。
Fool, you added this bill up wrong! 笨蛋，你把账单加多了！
So I made a mistake, big deal! 我真是错得离谱了。 

6. I''m So Sad... (1) 
Broke again. 又破产了。
That was my last one, too. 那可是我最后额财产了。 
Sigh. He doesn''t even know I''m alive. 啊啊，他一直都不知道我还活着。
The only feasting I do these days is in my dream. 这几天我只能在梦中享受山珍海味了。
I lost two teeth, my contract, and the game. （意译）福无双降，祸不单行；黄鼠狼单咬病鸭子。
Sob, I lost. 呜呜，我又输了。
He tricked me. I hate him. 他耍弄了我，好恨他。
Johnny doesn''t like me. 乔妮不喜欢我。
I blew it. 我们吹了。
I''m all washed up. 我都完事了（筋疲力尽了）。
Joe was really a rat. 乔（生前）是个十足的大骗子。（咒骂）
Shh! He''ll hear you. 咻，小声点，他会听到的。 

7. I''m So Sad... (2) 
Good-bye, cruel world. 永别了，残酷的世界啊。
I wish you wouldn''t go this way. 我希望你不必落得这样的下场。
Sigh, I''m so hungry. Can I have a bite? 噢，我肚子饿了。我可以吃一口吗？
No! Yum, gorge, glut. 不行，嚼嚼！你这讨厌鬼。
I''ll drown my sorrows. 我要消愁解闷。
Sob! I didn''t mean to kill it. I''m sorry birdie. 呜呜，我无意要杀死你。对不起，小鸟。
Ooo! I can''t look. 唔，我不忍心在看下去了。
Goodness, I do hope this isn''t a loud gun. I hate noise. 但愿这不是一把会发出巨响的手枪。俺不喜欢噪音。（自杀者的话）
Will it hurt? 不知道会不会受伤？
I''ll rip him apart with my hands. 我要亲手把他撕成碎片。（好恐怖） 
8. A Shy Little Kitten (1) 
The little boy grew red at the sight of the cute girl. 那个男孩子见到可爱的女孩而满脸通红。
She is afraid he''ll think her a pig. 她怕他会像对猪般的厌恶她。
Don''t be shy, dear. 亲爱的，你别害羞嘛。
I''m ashamed. I couldn''t tell you my love. 我真的不好意思,爱你在心口难开呀。
They feel uneasy. 他们因不安而没法镇定下来。
Behave yourself, or I''ll shot. 乖乖听命，不然我就开枪。
The audience laughs. 观众在大笑。
He is embarrassed because he made a mistake. 他因为弄错而显得很窘。
She blushes for him. 听了他的话，她羞红了脸。
You should see my wife in a bikini... She''s a knockout. 你应该看看我太太穿比基尼的样子，致命眩晕。 
9. A Shy Little Kitten (2) 
She lost her dignity. 她失去了镇定。
She is timid and completely at a loss what to do. 她羞臊得不知所措。
Yak, yak, yak. 哇哇哇！（好像是装出呕吐的样子） 
I told you, my mom could beat your pop. 告诉你，我妈要把你爸揍一顿。
Ahh, shucks! 哈哈，没关系。
He is pinned down by the demonstrators. 他被示威的队伍给钉住了。
She felt awkward. 她想到受到惩罚时的尴尬。
He will be too afraid to do anything. 他害怕得什么都不能做了。
Nice guy! 好家伙！
Bully! 暴徒！
Have a little wine, punk. 小伙子，喝一点酒吧。（可以缓解一下精神紧张）
The drunk humiliates the gentleman. 醉酒使得这位绅士丢人现眼。
He is teasing a friend. 他在愚弄朋友。 
He feels awkward. 他感到困惑。
She likes you a lot. 她对老兄你很倾心。
I could die. 简直（爱得）要死了。（注意语气）
Losing her eyelash cause her to blush for shame. 她因为弄丢了假睫毛，羞得面红耳赤。 
10.How Terrible! 
Oh, on! A ghost! 哇！有鬼呀！
My goodness! A snake! 天呀！有蛇！
His eyes will pop out in astonishment. 他因为害怕而瞪大了眼睛。
Frightened to death. 吓死人了。
Shook up. 吓住。
I''ve lost my nerve. 我失去了勇气。
She is scared to death. 她吓得半死。
How awful. 多可怕呀！
He is shocked. 他受到了打击。
She will be amazed when she wakes up for dinner. 她要是在吃晚餐的时候醒来。必定会大吃一惊。
OPPS! 哇！
He is surprised. 他大为惊讶。
She cried with shock. 她因受惊吓而喊叫。
She was so stunned, that she couldn''t speak. 她惊愕得说不出话来。
The crowd gasped with astonishment. 大家惊讶的屏住呼吸。
He surprised them, so they gave up quietly. 他出其不意地袭击了他们，因此他们乖乖地投降了。
They jumped at the unexpected noise. 他们因突如其来的声音吓得跳了起来。
She screamed in astonishment. 她惊吓得发出尖叫。
He was so startled that he yelled. 他惊吓得高声喊叫。
He turned white with amazement. 他害怕得脸都苍白了。
Got all in a panic. 惊恐万分。

11. I Think... (1)
She looks like my type. 她看起来像我喜欢的那种类型。
He seems to be the most muscular guy. 他看起来似乎最魁伟。
I believe I''m the strongest. 我相信我是最强壮的。
I know I''ll win. 我一定会赢的。
Let''s see who''s right. 让我看看谁是对的。
I have confidence in myself. 我对自己颇具信心。
I suppose he''s coming to us. 我才他会到这来的。
I''ve always respected him. 我一直很尊敬他。
I never expected him to be so great. 我没有想到他会是那么了不起。
I must be the first. 我一定要得第一。
I may be the first. 说不定我得第一。
She is supposed to be one of the best singers. 大家认为她是最有名气的歌星。
I wonder if it''s a real diamond. 它可是地道的钻石呀。
I think this is a fake diamond. 我想这是假钻石。 
12. I Think... (2) 
I bet he''s the best. 我敢打赌他是最棒的。
No everybody puts the highest values on him. 不，人人对他都有最高的评价。
I think his fish is a little bigger than mine. 他的鱼似乎比我的大了一点。
Maybe mine is the bigger. 我的或许更大些。
It is clear that fish is bigger than others and wins the championship. 这一条明明比其他的大，而且会获胜的。
It''s going to crash! Why? 要下坠了，究竟怎么啦？
I don''t know, sir, but I guess the computer made some mistake. 不知道呀，好像是电脑出了故障了。
This is your last chance. I believe you can make it. 这时你最后的机会，我相信你会成功的。
I''m sure I''ll be President. 我必定会当选总统。
I doubt he''ll win the election. 我怀疑他是否能赢得选举。
I think he''s no good. 我想他不行。
I''m willing to bet he''ll lose. 我愿意赌他输。
I think that''s the guy-he''s a killer. 我想那家伙是个杀手。
Must be. 一定是。
I''m afraid the pollution will kill us all. 公害可能把我们都逼死。
I''ve realized that we should stop the pollution. 我明白必须阻止公害的原因了。 
13. I Guess... 
I''m afraid the crash was because of your fault. 抱歉，我怕这次坠毁是你弄砸的缘故。
I guess you''re right. It seems I''ll be grounded. 我想你说得对，我看我该转到地勤了。
I hope I''ll get a big pay raise. 但愿薪水大大提高一下。
I suppose it might be gold. 说不定是金子啊。
No, it can''t be gold. 不，它不可能是金子。
I imagine it was part of a dinosaur. 我猜那是恐龙的一部分骨骼。
This will be the biggest fish ever. 这是前所未见的大鱼吧？
Guess! I hope you''ll like it. 猜猜看！我想你会中意的。
What can it be? 它是什么呢？
I expected No.2 to win. 我以为2号会赢。 

14. I Agree... 
Women have the same rights as you! 女人也和你一样享有同等权力！
No! Women should stay at home. 不，女人应该呆在家里！
Dear, you''ll be home right after work, won''t you? 亲爱的，你做完工作会直接回家是吗？
I''ll try, but I may have to work late. 就这样办，不过，昨晚工作怕要很晚了。
So, you see... 所以啊，你该知道……
I may be wrong, but your theory is all wrong, professor. 也许我不对，不过，教授您的理论是完全错了。
Please sign. 请你签字。 
No, I don''t want to. 不，我不希望那样。
Gentlemen! Can''t you agree on anything? 先生们，可否赞成一项？ 
15. I Plan... 
I thought he could design the most beautiful department store, but... 我想他能设计出最漂亮的百货商场，不过……
The designer is working hard on a new project. 设计师在努力筹划新颖的设计项目。
The concert will be held September 14 at 10 a.m. 该演奏会预定于9月14日10时举行。
After Flagstaff, we''ll go to San Diego. 到佛拉格斯塔夫之后，我们去圣迭戈吧。
To plan a vacation trip. 计划休假的旅行。
The spacecraft is scheduled to arrive at Saturn next year. 太空船预定明年到达土星。
Our plan is the best and the safest, you see. 正如你所见到的，我们的计划是最完美，最安全的。
Why don''t you change your route? 你们为什么不变更路线呢？
The U.S. will take one route, the Japan take other. 美国和日本采取不同的新路径。
To plan a mountain climbing expedition. 计划登山探险。
Now, let''s find some new girls. 现在让我们寻找一些新的女孩子。
He is planning his future already. 他已经在为将来做打算了。
You use the front door and I''ll hit the back. 你从正门进去，我袭击后面。
OK. Your plans are always successful. OK，你的计划常常无往不利！
The gangsters are planning a robbery. 一伙强盗在计划抢劫。
If his plan works, he''ll earn 100 million in 10 years. 如果按照他的计划做，十年就能挣到一亿元了。
changed mind 改变主意
perish the thought 打消念头 
Learning is better than house and land. 学问是一生的财富。 

16. May I Ask You... ? 
Could I speak to you, please? 我可以跟你谈话吗？
Aren''t you dressed too formally? 你穿的不是太正式化了吗？
She feels pity for him. 她同情他。 
What happened, guy? 怎么了，伙计？
Do you like football? 你喜欢足球吗？
Sure. Are you a pro-golfer? 当然了。你是指也高尔夫球手吗？
Didn''t you order this? 你不是订下这道菜了吗？
Could you carry my doggie for me? 你能替我带我的小狗吗？
What can I do? 我该怎么办哪？
Why are you yelling? 你在嚷什么？
I wonder why they''re angry. 伙计，他们为什么生气？ 
17. Is That... ? 
Will she like it? 她会喜欢它吗？
I wonder what he''s doing. 我不知道他在做什么。
Tell me where I can post them. 请问，哪里有投信的邮筒？ 
The mailbox is over there. 邮筒就在那儿。
I think he''s still in bed. 我想，他还赖在床上。
What is he doing today? 今天他在做些什么？
They imagine, what he is doing. 她们在猜他所做的事。
What will the weather be like tomorrow? 明天将是什么样的天气呀？
Is the plane leaving? 飞机要起飞了吗？（将来时，而不是进行时）
What is your girlfriend''s name? 你女朋友的芳名是？
Can I take my vacation, sir? I would like to see my mother in Miami. 头，我可以休假吗？我要去探望在迈阿密的母亲。
Jenny, does she really live here? 珍妮，你真的在迈阿密有母亲吗？
Could you give me some comments? 你有什么感想吗？
Don''t you think she''s cute? 你不认为她很可爱吗？
I guess so, honey. 嗯，真的。
How do other racers feel? 他的赛车同伴怎么想？
Who''s the second? 下一位是谁？
You saw that movie, didn''t you? Was it interesting? 你看过这部电影了吧？精彩吗？
Yes, but I don''t want go downtown. 是的，但是我不希望上街。
Will our baby be a boy? 我们的小宝宝是男孩吗？
How much will the hospital bill be? 住院费大概是多少钱？ 
Didn''t I tell you he''s same size to me? 我没有说过他和我一样大小吗？
Wasn''t he a little bigger than you? 他不是块头比你大一些吗？
How was it, sir? 它好吗？先生。
The dinner was superb. Who cooked it? 菜太棒了！谁做的？你吗？ 

18. Could You... ? 
Would you please put it on top? 能请你把它放在最上面吗?
We demand better pay. 我们要求增加工资。
Please be reasonable. 请别做无理的要求。
Dad, do you mind if we use this room? 爸，我们可以使用这个房间吗？
Will you marry me? 你肯嫁给我吗？（说这句话的时候，眼睛一定要看着她的眼睛。）
Would you take them to my room? 能送到我的房间吗？
Officer, give me a break. 警官，请恕我打扰一下。
I''ve got four kids at home and no wife. 我有四个由我父兼母职的孩子。（又当爹，又当妈，好辛苦。）
Would you meet me 3:30? 你能在三点版和我见面吗？ 
19. Do It, Now. 
I can''t help it, sir. 我也无能为力，先生。
You''ve got no ID card, boy! 你是小孩吧，怎么没带身份证呀。
But I''ll pay. Why not? 但是我付钱啊，不行吗？
You''re way behind schedule. 你比预定的落后了。
Get out of the car! You''re drunk. 下车，你这家伙！喝醉了吧！
Sorry, sir. But it''s our graduation day. 对不起，不过，今天是毕业的日子嘛。
Fly me to Cuba. I hijack the plane. 飞往古巴。这架飞机我要了！（劫机，好可怕呀。）
Give me the rocket and boat, and I''ll give you a sucker. 把那火箭和快艇给我，我就给你棒棒糖。
Don''t trust him, he''s lying. 别相信他，他在乱盖。
Son! Don''t make suck a noise when you eat. 儿子，吃饭的时候不可以发出声音。
Hi, thief! Would you stop that music for me? 喂，小偷兄，你能替我把音乐关掉吗？ 
Who is it? Come down. 是谁？下来。
Who cares! 我不在乎！
I don''t care what you say. 我不在乎别人怎么说。 
20. Oh, No, No... (1) 
Oh, no! Not today, please! 哦，不要！今天就饶了我吧。
No, Jack. You must go on. 不行，杰克。你必须继续下去。
Hello! I''m from ABC Insurance. May I speak to you? 您好，我是从ABC保险公司来的。我可以跟您谈谈吗？
Nobody''s at home. 家里面没人。
No. Can''t you see that rocket is almost falling down. 不。你不知道火箭快要倒下来了吗？
Make love not war! 要爱情不要战争。（美国反越战时期的口号。）
No, No. You can''t do it like that. 不行，不行。不能随你那样做。
You must go to the moon. It''s your duty. 你必须上月球去，这是你的职责。
We won''t go to war. 我们不希望诉诸于战争。
Stop it, Apollo! 阿波罗计划中止了。
I don''t like working on Sunday. 我不喜欢在星期天工作。
This is our play road. 这里是我们游戏的地方。
We don''t like them to pass through here. 我们不希望汽车通过这里。


26个美国人日常生活用语>>>
	 

1. After you.你先请。这是一句很常用的客套话，在进／出门,上车得场合你都可以表现一下。 
2. I just couldn''t help it.我就是忍不住。想想看，这样一个漂亮的句子可用于多少个场合？下面是随意举的一个例子： 
I was deeply moved by the film and I cried and cried. I just couldn''t help it. 
3. Don''t take it to heart. 别往心里去，别为此而忧虑伤神。生活实例： 
This test isn''t that important. Don''t take it to heart. 
4. We''d better be off.我们该走了。It''s getting late. We''d better be off . 
5. Let''s face it. 面对现实吧。常表明说话人不愿意逃避困难的现状。 
参考例句：I know it''s a difficult situation. Let''s face it, OK? 
6. Let''s get started.咱们开始干吧。劝导别人时说：Don''t just talk. Let''s get started. 
7. I''m really dead.我真要累死了。坦诚自己的感受时说：After all that work, I’m really dead. 
8. I''ve done my best.我已尽力了。 
9. Is that so?真是那样吗？常用在一个人听了一件事后表示惊讶、怀疑。 
10. Don''t play games with me!别跟我耍花招！ 
11. I don''t know for sure.我不确切知道。 
Stranger： Could you tell me how to get to the town hall? 
Tom: I don''t know for sure. Maybe you could ask the policeman over there. 
12. I''m not going to kid you.我不是跟你开玩笑的。 
Karin： You quit the job? You are kidding. 
Jack: I''m not going to kid you. I''m serious. 
13. That''s something. 太好了，太棒了。 
A: I''m granted a full scholarship for this semester. 
B: Congratulations. That''s something. 
14. Brilliant idea!这主意真棒！这主意真高明！ 
15. Do you really mean it? 此话当真？ 
Michael：Whenever you are short of money, just come to me. 
David: Do you really mean it? 
16. You are a great help.你帮了大忙 
17. I couldn''t be more sure. 我再也肯定不过。 
18. I am behind you.我支持你。 
A: Whatever decision you''re going to make, I am behind you. 
19. I''m broke.我身无分文。 
20. Mind you!请注意！听着！(也可仅用Mind。) 
模范例句：Mind you! He''s a very nice fellow though bad-tempered. 
21. You can count on it.你尽管相信好了，尽管放心。 
A：Do you think he will come to my birthday party? 
B: You can count on it. 
22. I never liked it anyway.我一直不太喜欢这东西。当朋友或同事不小心摔坏你的东西时就可以用上这句话给他一个台阶，打破尴尬局面：
Oh, don''t worry. I''m thinking of buying a new one. I never liked it anyway. 
23. That depends.看情况再说。 
例：I may go to the airport to meet her. But that depends. 
24. Congratulations.恭喜你，祝贺你。 
25. Thanks anyway.无论如何我还是得谢谢你。当别人尽力要帮助你却没帮成时，你就可以用这个短语表示谢意。 
26. It''s a deal.一言为定 
Harry： Haven''t seen you for ages. Let''s have a get-together next week. 
Jenny: It''s a deal 


